
    

 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
 October 24, 2013 

 

 
 
 

  

The October 24, 2013 Board Meeting of the Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park District Board of 

Directors was called to order by Board Chair Glover at 6:32 p.m. in the Conference Room at the 
Administration Office.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Board Chair Glover led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 

BOARD PRESENT:  Donaghu, Sterrett, Bonato, Glover, Shess 
 
STAFF PRESENT:     Berggren, Lischeske, Blair, Miller, Spatz  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Marcia Ribner, resident of Lafayette, spoke regarding the nonsmoking ordinance in the parks.  

She stated that she is requesting more signage to be posted in District parks regarding the 
nonsmoking ordinance.  She offered to make a donation so that more signs may be purchased 
by the District for placement in the parks. 

 
FUNDRAISING REPORT 
The General Manager reviewed the updated revenue expense report for the bond project’s 

furniture, fixtures and equipment.  He commented that most items related to the Senior and 
Teen Centers have been closed out due to the completion of the projects.  He stated that the 
Community Center will continue to be updated on the report as it is being completed. 

 
UPDATES ON BOND PROJECTS   
 

The General Manager made the following comments:  
 
COMMUNITY CENTER 

 The Trespa has not arrived yet, it is expected here November 11th or 12th. 
   The site concrete work will be completed next week followed by the asphalt. 

   The interior case work has begun. 
   The tile installation has begun in the restrooms. 

   The Douglas fir strips are being installed now in the Perera Pavilion. 
   The interior painting has been completed. 

   He reported that staff is concerned about the current Grand Opening dates of January 2nd and 
January 4th.  There will still be a “soft” opening planned for the beginning of January.  Staff is 

recommending moving the Grand opening dates to January 22nd and 26th.  The Board agreed that the 
later dates would be better. 
 

Board Member Sterrett asked how the rummage sale of the old Community Center furniture went.  The 
General Manager commented that it went very well. 
 

Board Member Donaghu commented that the Community Center looks very big, and that it is going to 
be a great facility.  
 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2013        2 

 

 

 
PLEASANT OAKS PARK 
The General Manager commented that he would like to schedule a Board Tour of this site in the first 

week of November.   
 

 Projects are continuing on schedule. 

 
Board Chair Glover started the regular meeting at 7:12 p.m. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

 
EX-OFFICIO MEMBER REPORT, KEVIN NEYS– COLLEGE PARK HIGH SCHOOL 

 
Ex-Officio Neys was not present to give a report. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (ACTION)  

a. TO APPROVE BILLS TO BE PAID 
b. TO APPROVE MINUTES OF AUGUST 8, 2013 AND AUGUST 22, 2013  

 

Upon motion of Board Members Donaghu & Sterrett, the Board approved the Consent Calendar.   
 
REPORT FROM PH TENNIS CLUB         

 
President Gary Smith was present to give the Board the annual report from the Pleasant Hill Tennis 
Club.  He reported that they have recently moved their matches from the middle school to the 
College Park High School tennis courts.   They will be holding a mixer at the new College Park site 

and will be inviting the Board to attend.  
 
Board Member Bonato asked why the group had left the middle school site.  Smith explained that 

the courts at College Park have held up much better than at the middle school site and that the 
cost would be too high to refurbish the middle school courts. 
 

The Board thanked Smith for his report, and for all the work their group does for the District. 
  
REVIEW JUNE 30, 2013 FISCAL YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
Accounting Supervisor Mark Blair was present to review the June 30, 2013 fiscal year financial 
report. Blair stated the following: 

 The bottom line results for the General Fund show an overall improvement of $536k over the 
prior year figures. 

 Tax Revenue - Overall taxes collected (Secured, Unsecured, HOPTR & RDA) were up 10.6% 
from the prior year.  He commented that the main reason for this increase was that RDA 
amounts received were up $374k over last year due to the dissolution of RDA’s statewide 

and a return of funds held. 
 Miscellaneous Revenue – The current year included $350k of income resulting from the net 

proceeds received from the sale of the “Little House” property. 
 Overall Program Revenue – Blair reported that the total program revenues for the current 

year are up 5% compared to last year.  He commented that this increase reflects new rental 

revenue and increased programming occurring due to opening the new Senior & Teen Center 
sites.   



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2013        3 

 

 

 Overall Program Expenses – Blair reported that the overall program expenses show an 
increase of 5.7% increase compared to the prior year.  

 Capital Expenses – Blair reported that this department shows a $480k increase over last 
year.  He commented that the current year has $637k of expenses related to the Bocce 

Courts and other non-bond covered expenses for the Teen Center, Senior Center, and 
Community Center.  He said a $590k offset to these expenses is shown in the Non-Rec 
department under Project Funding. 

 
Board Member Bonato asked if the loss of the redevelopment agencies will be a help to the District 
budget.  Blair stated that it would be.  She commented that District staff is doing a good job looking 
at future budgeting.   

 
Board Member Donaghu commented that Blair’s report was the most positive report he has seen 
since he has been on the board. 

 
The Board thanked Blair for his report. 
 

TO CONFIRM DATE FOR BOARD STUDY SESSION   
 
The General Manager confirmed that the Board Study Session will be November 14, 2013 from  

8:00 am to Noon. 

 
TO CONSIDER SIGNAGE PROPOSAL FOR RODGERS RANCH HERITAGE CENTER (ACTION) 

 
The General Manager stated that the District has never had a permanent sign at the Rodgers Ranch 
site.  He said that recently the Friends of Rodgers Ranch have officially changed their name to the 

“Rodgers Ranch Heritage Center”, and would like new signage for the site.   The General Manager 
stated that it would be nice to have a permanent sign at the location, but that the District has a 
number of parks budgeted to upgrade to new signage in a rate of two parks per year.  He 

commented that since Rodgers Ranch is a District site, the District should have input on the design of 
any signage that is proposed by the Friends of Rodgers Ranch group.  
 

Board Member Sterrett said that she did not feel money should be spent on this item.  She 
commented that there are other District items that need to be completed at this time. 
 

Board Member Shess commented that he also feels this is not the right time to take action on this 
item, as it will not send a good message to the Community. 
 

Board Member Bonato said that she feels any sign proposed for the site should be professionally 
designed, and the design should come to the Board for final approval.  She commented that she is in 
agreement that there is not money in the District budget for this item at this time. 

 
Board Chair Glover commented that he would like to see more directional signage on Grayson to the 
site.  He agreed it would be a large financial project for the District to complete at this time. 

 
The Board all felt that branding is important for this project when it does happen and that having the 
District logo on the signage will be essential. 
 

No action was taken on this item.   
 
BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REQUESTS TO STAFF 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2013        4 

 

 

Sterrett made the following announcements/questions: 
 She attended the Share the Magic show last Friday night.  She said it was a great show, and 

she encouraged everyone to go next year.  Board Member Bonato asked how many people 
were in attendance.  Recreation Superintendent Tina Young said there were 110.    

 She attended the bullying movie event at the Teen Center.  She said there were 

approximately 25 people in attendance.  She complimented Recreation Supervisor Katrina 
Hunn on the success of both events. 

 She thanked the General Manager for the follow up report regarding the Teen Center pick up 
policies.  

 She commented on the article in the Contra Costa Times regarding Special District Boards.  

She would like a press release from the District regarding the article.  The General Manager 
said that Marketing Specialist Jen Thoits has started a press release in response to the 

article.  
 
Donaghu made the following announcements/questions: 

 He attended the most recent Pleasant Hill Chamber of Commerce meeting.  He said the 
Chamber will be bringing back their Casino Night event.  

 He reported that according to the Chamber this year’s Pleasant Hill Art Jazz & Wine event 

was the most successful ever. 
 

Shess made the following announcements/questions: 
 He offered to help review the press release regarding the article in the Times about Special 

District Boards. 

 
Bonato made the following announcements/questions:  

 She commented that the City of Pleasant Hill has asked AT&T to give them explanations as 

to why alternate cellular towers will not work in the proposed cell tower area.  She asked the 
General Manager if anyone from AT&T has contacted him regarding the latest cell tower 

issues.  He said he has not been contacted by anyone yet.   
 She stated that the Planning Commission has been looking into the issue of historical 

properties in Pleasant Hill.  She reported that the City of Pleasant Hill has asked the Planning 

Commission to look into the ordinances regarding these properties.  She commented that the 
District’s “old school house” property was on the list of historical sites to be reviewed.  
Bonato feels the City should not be the one to decide the “fate” of the School House 

property.  She said the Planning Commission is requesting that the District help to decide 
whether the property should be on the historical list.   

 She is in agreement that the District should have more signs in place regarding the non-

smoking ordinance. 
 

Glover made the following announcements/questions: 
 He commented that he spoke with the woman who has created the petition regarding the 

playground equipment at Pleasant Oaks Park.  He is expecting people to attend the 

November 7th meeting regarding this issue.   
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2013        5 

 

 

STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 
The General Manager made the following announcements: 
 

 He reported that Recreation Superintendent Tina Young will be e-mailing the Program 
Committee Meeting dates to Board Member’s Sterrett and Shess.  

 He reported that Board Chair Glover and he attended a meet and greet meeting with the 
YMCA in preparation of the re-opening of the Community Center.  He commented that the 

biggest issue once the Community Center is re-opened will be parking.  Recreation 
Superintendent Young will be meeting with the YMCA next week to discuss this further.    

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Board Chair Glover adjourned the meeting at 9:17 p.m.  
 

 
 
________________________________  

Robert B. Berggren, Clerk of the Board 


